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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

HILDA L. SOLIS, SECRETARY OF LABOR,
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR,
CIVIL ACTION NUMBER
Plaintiff,

V.

JOHN J. KORESKOQ, V; JEANNE BONNEY;
PENN-MONT BENEFIT SERVICES, INC;
KORESKQO & ASSOCIATES, P.C.;
KORESKO LAW FIRM, P.C.;
COMMUNITY TRUST COMPANY;
PENN PUBLIC TRUST;
REGIONAL EMPLOYERS ASSURANCE
LEAGUES VOLUNTARY EMPLOYEES’
BENEFICIARY ASSOCIATION TRUST and
SINGLE EMPLOYER WELFARE BENEFIT
PLAN TRUST,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT
VHilda L. Solis, Secretary of Labor, United States Department of Labor, hereby alleges:
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This action arises under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
("ERISA“ 61‘ "the Act"), 29 U.S.C. § 1001, ef seq., and is brought to obtain relief under Sections
409 and 502 of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1109 and 1132, in the form of equitable remedies that will
redress violations, obtain restitution from employee benefit plan fiduciaries, and enforce the
provisions of Title I of the Act.

2, This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section
502(e)(1) of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1132(e)(1).

3. Penn-Mont Benefit Services, Inc. (“Penn-Mont™) sold prototype welfare plans to

numerous companies and persons throughout the United States. The prototype plans were



Case 2:09-cv-00988-WB Document 1 Filed 03/06/09 Page 2 of 28

known as the Regional Employers Assurance Leagues Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary
Association Health and Welfare Benefit Plan (“REAL VEBA™) and/or the Single Employer
Welfare Benefit Plan (“SEP”), hereinafter the “prototype Plans.” The plans offered death
benefits and/or other welfare benefits to the participants. Prior to 2000, Penn-Mont sold other
prototype plans under other names. These earlier plans were merged into or transferred to the
REAL VEBA.

4. By adopting the prototype Plan documents,lemployers established or maintained
over 100 single-employer employee benefit plans (“the Plan or Plans™) subject to ERISA
coverage, pursuant to Sections 3(3) and 4(a) of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 1002(3) and 1003(a). The
names of the currently identified covered Plans are listed in Exhibit A, attached hereto and

incorporated by reference.

5. At all relevant times, the Plans were administered in Montgomery County,
Pennsylvania.
6. Venue with respect to this action lies in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

pursuant to Section 502(e)(2) of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1132(e)(2).

7. The relevant period is January 1, 2000, to date.

PARTIES

8. The Secretary, pursuant to Sections 502(a)(2) and (5) of the Act, 29 U.S.C. §
1132(a)(2) and (5), has the authority to enforce the provisions of Title I of ERISA by, among
other means, the filing and prosecution of claims against fiduciaries and others who commit
violations of ERISA.

9. Defendant John J. Koresko, V (“Koresko”) maintains an office in Bridgeport,

Pennsylvania. He is the president of defendant Penn-Mont. He also is an attorney and the sole



Case 2:09-cv-00988-WB Document 1 Filed 03/06/09 Page 3 of 28

sharehc;lder of defendant Koresko & Associates, PC (“KAPC”), a law firm, the president of
defendant Koresko Law Firm, PC (“KLF”), and vice president and secretary/treasurer of
defendant Penn Public Trust. Plan assets weré deposited in bank accounts controlled by Koresko
and others, Koresko exercised authority or control respecting disposition of the Plans’ assets.
Koresk;J was therefore a fiduciary with respect to the Plans within the meaning of Section
3(21)(A) of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1002(21)(A), for the relevant time period. Koresko was a party-
in-interest within the meaning of ERISA Section 3(14)(A) and (H), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(14)(A) and
(H), for the relevant time period.,

.10. Defendant Jeanne Bonney (“Bonney”) maintains an office in Bridgeport,
Pennsylvania. She is an attorney at Koresko’s law firms, KAPC and KLF. She controls the
operations of Penn-Mont and/or KAPC and KLF with regard to their responsibility to provide
plan administration to the Plans, and has responsibility for directing the Plan Trustee to transfer
assets. Plan assets were deposited in bank accounts controlled by Bonney and Koresko. Bonney
exercised discretionary authority or discretionary control respecting management of the Plans,
exercised authority or control respecting management or disposition of the Plans’ assets, and had
discretipnafy authority or discretionary responsibility in the administration of the Plans. Bonney
was therefore a fiduciary with respect to the Plans within the meaning of Section 3(21)(A) of
ERISA, 29 U.5.C. § 1002(21)(A), for the relevant time period. Bonney was a party-in-interest
within the meaning of ERISA Section 3(14)(A), (B), and (H), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(14)(A), (B), and
(H), for the relevant time period.

11. Defendant Penn-Mont Benefit Services, Inc. (“Penn-Mont”) maintains an office
in Bridgeport, Pennsylvania. Penn-Mont was the named Plan Administrator of each Plan. Plan

assets were deposited in bank accounts belonging to Penn-Mont. Penn-Mont exercised
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discretionary authority or discretionary control respecting management of the Plans, exercised
authority or control respecting management or disposition of the Plans’ assets, and had
discretionary authority or discretionary responsibility in the administration of the Plans. Penn-
Mont was therefore a fiduciary with respect to the Plans within the meaning of Section 3(21)(A)
of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1002(21)(A), for the relevant time period. Penn-Mont was a party-in-
interest within the meaning of ERISA Section 3(14)(A) and (B), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(14)(A) and
(B), for the relevant time period.

12. Defendant Koresko & Associates, PC (“KAPC”) is a law firm and maintains an
office in Bridgeport, Pennsylvania. During some or all of the relevant period, KAPC provided
plan administration services to the Plans. Plan assets were deposited in bank accounts belonging
to KAPC. KAPC exercised discretionary authority or discretionary control respecting
management of the Plans, exercised authority or control respecting management or disposition of
the Plans’ assets, and had discretionary authority or discretionary responsibility in the
administration of the Plans, KAPC was therefore a fiduciary with respect to the Plans within the
meaning of Section 3(21)(A) of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1002(21)(A), for the relevant time period.
KAPC was a party-in-interest within the meaning of ERISA Section 3(14)(A) and (B), 29 U.S.C.
§ 1002(14)(A) and (B), for the relevant time period.

13.  Defendant Koresko Law Firm, P.C. (“KLF*) maintains an office in Bridgeport,
Pennsylvania. During some or all of the relevant period, KLF provided plan administration
services to the Plans. Plan assets were deposited in bank accounts belonging to KLF. KLF
exercised discretionary authority or discretionary control respecting management of the Plans,
exercised authority or control respecting management or disposition of the Plans’ assets, and had

discretionary authority or discretionary responsibility in the administration of the Plans. KLF
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was therefore a fiduciary with respect to the Plans within the meaning of Section 3(21)(A) of
ERISA, 29 U.8.C. § 1002(21)(A), for the relevant time period. KLF was a party-in-interest
within the meaning of ERISA Section 3(14)(A) and (B), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(14)(A) and (B), for
the relevant time period.

‘14. During the relevant time period, Defendant Community Trust Company (*CTC”)
maintained an office in Camp Hill, Pennsylvania, was the trustee of the REAL VEBA Trust and
the SEP Trust, and was the trustee of each Plan. According to the Trust Agreements, CTC
moved trust funds at the direction of the Plan Administrator, Penn-Mont. As the trustee of the
Trusts and each Plan, CTC exercised authority or control respecting management or disposition
of the Plans’ assets. CTC was therefore a fiduciary with respect to the Plans within the meaning
of Section 3(21)(A) of ERISA, 29 U.S.C. § 1002(21)(A), during the relevant time period. CTC
was a party-in-interest within the meaning of ERISA Section 3(14)(A) and (B), 29 U.S.C. §
1002(14)(A) and (B), for the relevant time period.

15.  Defendant Penn Public Trust (“PPT”") maintains an office in Bridgeport,
Pennsylvania. Plan assets were deposited in bank accounts belonging to PPT, PPT exercised
authority or control respecting disposition of the Plans’ assets. PPT was therefore a fiduciary
with reépect to the Plans within the meaning of Section 3(21)(A) of ERISA, 29 US.C. §
1002(21)(A), for the relevant time period. PPT was a party-in-interest within the meaning of
ERISA Section 3(14)(A), 29 U.S.C. § 1002(14)(A), for the relevant time period.

16.  The REAL VEBA Trust and the SEP Trust are‘ joined as party defendants, pursuant
to Rule: 19(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, solely to assure that complete relief can be

granted.
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PREFATORY ALLEGATIONS
General Background

17.  Penn-Mont sold the prototype Plans nationwide. Employers purchased the
product and used the prototype Plan to establish death benefit and/or welfare benefit plans for
their businesses.

118. Penn-Mont was the Plan Administrator for each Plan. Each employer paid Penn-
Mont an administrative fee for its services as the Plan Administrator.

19.  Koresko was Penn-Mont’s president. Penn-Mont had no employees. Penn-
Mont’s duties as Plan Administrator were performed by Koresko’s law firms, KAPC and KLF.
Bonney, an attorney who worked for KAPC and KLF, had responsibility for the operations of
plan administration, including issuance of directions to the Plans’ Trustee. Accordingly, all
allegations hereinafter against Penn-Mont are also alleged against Bonney, KAPC and KLF.

:20. Each of the employers that established or maintained the Plans listed on Exhibit A
adopted a prototype Plan document and provided death benefits or other welfare benefits to its
employees.

21.  The Plans’ assets were originally held in the REAL VEBA Trust or predecessor
trusts. In aﬁproximately late 2004 or early 2005, the bank accounts of the REAL VEBA Trust
were closed, and the Plans’ monies were transferred from the REAL VEBA Trust to the SEP
Trust.

Death Benefits

22.  Each Plan funded the death benefits by purchasing insurance from an insurance

company. The insurance policies were issued on the lives of individual participants.

23.  The Plan documents promised the participant’s beneficiary a certain sum to be
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paid at the death of the participant,

24.  After being notified of a death, an insurance company paid the Trusts the value of
the policy issued on the life of the deceased participant. Penn-Mont directed CTC to transfer the
insurance proceeds out of the Trust account to accounts styled as “death benefit accounts.” Only
Koresko and Bonney, who were not Trustees of the Plans, had authority over these “death
benefit'accounts”. Trustee CTC had no authority or control over the accounts,

25.  Inregard to at least three ERISA-covered plans administered by Penn-Mont, as
described below, the beneficiaries designated by the participants did not receive the full amount
required by the terms of the Plans upon the deaths of the participants. Rather, Penn-Mont gave
the beneficiary two options: either to receive the full amount of the death benefit in 10 annual
payments, without interest, or to accept a lump sum considerably less than the full amount of the
death benefit and the insurance proceeds. If the beneficiaries chose the lump sum, Defendants
Koresko and/or Bonney diverted the balance of the insurance proceeds, which belonged to these
beneficiaries or their Plans, out of the “death benefit accounts™ to KAPC and/or KLF.

26. The terms of the Cetylite Industries Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan (“the
Cetylite Plan™) required that the beneficiary of a certain deceased participant was entitled to a
payment of at least $1,000,000. Upon the death of that participant, the insurance company paid
approximately $1,027,374 to the Trust. Penn-Mont directed CTC to transfer the insurance
proceedings out of the Trust into an account called the Kelling Family Death Benefit Trust.
Although called a “Trust,” this account was controlled exclusively by Bonney and Koresko, who
are not Trustees for the Cetylite Plan. Trustee CTC had no authority or control over the account.
KOreSk:O and/or Bonney paid the participant’s beneficiary only approximately $812,681.

Koresko and/or Bonney, after a small payment to the Internal Revenue Service, transferred the

7
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balance of the money, over $200,000, to a KAPC and/or KLF bank account and another “death
benefit account” named the Angermeier Death Benefit Trust (“Angermeier account™), which was
a bank account opened upon the death of another participant in an unrelated plan and controlled
only by Koresko and Bonney.

27. The terms of the Décor Coordinates Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan (“the
Decor Plan”) required that the beneficiary of a certain deceased participant was entitled to a
payment of at least $2,500,000. Upon the death of that participant, the insurance company paid
approximately $2,515,890 to the Trustee. Penn-Mont directed CTC to transfer the insurance
proceedings out of the Trust into an account called the Ferraro Death Benefit Trust. Although
called a “Trust,” this account was controlled exclusively by Bonney and Koresko, who are not
Trustees for the Décor Plan. CTC, who is a Trustee for this Plan, did not have any authority or
control over this account. Koresko and/or Bonney paid the participant’s beneficiary only
approximately $2,027,723. Koresko and/or Bonney, after a small payment to the Internal
Revenue Service, transferred the balance of the money, almost $500,000, to the KAPC and/or
KLF bank account and the Angermeier account,

28. The terms of the Domenic M. Castellano D.D.S. P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit
Plan (“the Castellano Plan”) required that as a result of the death of Dr. Castellano, his
beneficiary was entitled to a payment of at least $750,000. Upon the death of Dr. Castellano, the
insurance éompany paid approximately $751,266 to the Trust. Penn-Mont directed CTC to
transfer the insurance proceedings out of the Trust into an account called the “Castellano Death
Benefit Trust.” Although called a “Trust,” this account was controlled exclusively by Bonney
and Kdresko, who are not Trustees for the Castellano Plan, CTC, who is a Trustee for this Plan,

did not have any authority or control over this account. No benefits have been paid to any
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beneficiary of Dr. Castellano. Koresko and/or Bonney, after a small payment to the Internal

Revenue Service, transferred over $762,000 to the KAPC and/or KLF bank account and the

Ange@eier account. The benefit dispute is the subject of a lawsuit which is now pending in this

Court as Civil Action Number 2:03-CV-06903 (CDJ).

Income paid out of the Trust to Defendants
29, The employers forwarded contributions to the Trusts for the purposes of paying

premiumé on the insurance policies. The contributions to the Plans remained in the Trusts for
varying periods of time. Monies were swept daily from the checking accounts and deposited in
investments until needed to pay premiums.

30. The interest income was taken out of the Trusts and deposited into a bank account
belonging to PPT and controlled by Koresko. In particular, during the period April 2002 through
December 2004, on a monthly basis, Penn-Mont directed CTC to transfer all the interest to a
bank account belonging to PPT, despite the fact that the Trust Agreements state that all income
and/or garnings of the Trust belonged solely to the Trusts.

31.  During that same time period, Koresko controlled the money in and wrote checks
on this PPT account. He did not use his control over the PPT bank account to return the interest
income to the Trust.

32, Any directions to CTC by the other Defendants about the transfer of interest
income were not properly made in accordance with the terms of the Plan and were contrary to
ERISA.

Other transfers out of the Trust to the Defendants
33.  During the relevant period, Penn-Mont directed CTC to transfer Plan assets to

Penn-Mont, KAPC, KLF and PPT, all parties in interest. These Defendants were not entitled to
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receive these funds from the Trusts. However, on a regular basis, Penn-Mont directed CTC to
transfer varying sums of money to these parties in interest.

34.  Although some of these transfers were characterized as administrative fees owed
to Penn-Mont, Penn-Mont should not have deducted its fees from the Trusts. Penn-Mont
charged its fees to the employers, not to the Trusts. Penn-Mont set its own fees, which were not
approved by an independent fiduciary, and directed that the fees be paid with Plan assets. In this
manner, Pénn—Mont impermissibly used its authority over Plan assets to set its own
compensation with those assets.

35. . Koresko had control over the Penn-Mont, KAPC, KLF, and PPT accounts to
which Plan assets were transferred, Koresko regularly moved money between the entities, but he
did not use his control over the bank accounts to return the Plans’ assets to the Trust. Instead,
on at least one occasion, a certain sum of money deposited into the PPT account was within days
transferred by Koresko to a KAPC bank account.

Stock and dividends
36. Some of the insurance companies from which the Plans bought policies insuring
the lives of individual participants were mutual companies that demutualized and became stock
companies. Upon demutualization, these insurance companies issued stock to some of the Plans
and the:reafter paid dividends on this stock to the shareholder Plans.
37. Penn-Mont never credited the stock and dividends to the Plans and/or the
participants that had purchased the policies.
Lobbying expenses
.38. During the relevant period, Koresko, signing as chair of Penn-Mont, entered into

an agreement with a lobbying firm in Washington, D.C., and obligated the REAL VEBA Trust to

10
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pay a retainer and other expenses for the services of the lobbying firm. At the direction of Penn-
Mont, CTC paid the lobbying firm with money from the Trusts. The Trusts paid for lobbying
activities that included, but were not limited to, enhancing Penn-Mont’s ability to market the
plans by seeking favorable tax treatment for the employers who purchased the plans sold by
Penn-Mont, and similar issues related to tax deductions. This lobbying also included contacting
Department of Labor officials concerning the open Department of Labor investigation
underl;}ing this lawsuit.

39. These lobbying activities were not reasonable or necessary administrative
expenses for the Plans. This lobbying sought to benefit Penn-Mont and Koresko who were
selling prototype plans and/or the employers as taxpayers, but not the Plans.

| Need for an accounting by a master and new fiduciaries

40. The Department has served subpoenas on Koresko, Penn-Mont, KAPC, KLF and
CTC, as well as related parties, starting with subpoenas issued on or about February 4, 2004. To
date, Kpresko, Penn-Mont, KAPC, KLF and CTC have interfered with the Department’s
investigation by their failure to fully comply with the subpoenas. Subpoena enforcement actions
to compel production of documents are currently pending in the Third Circuit Court of Appeals.

41.  Due to the Defendants’ widespread self-dealing and imprudent and disloyal
conduct, ana their sustained refusal to cooperate with a legitimate government investigation, a
special master is needed to perform, at Defendants’ expense, a full accounting to protect the
Plans by determining the full amount of the Plan assets improperly diverted to Defendants and
the full amount of restitution due to each Plan.

42.  Anindependent fiduciary or other new fiduciaries are needed for the Plans, to

administer the Plans, in accordance with the requirements of ERISA and the Plan documents to

11
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the extent the Plan documents are consistent with ERISA, including paying beneficiaries for all
benefits due to them.
VIOLATIONS

43, Pursuant to Rule 10(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the Secretary

adopts by reference the averments and allegations of paragraphs 1 through 42, inclusive.
Unlawful Transfer of Death Benefits to Defendants

44, By their actions and conduct described in paragraphs 22 to 28 above with regard
to the death benefits:

a, Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge
their duties with respect to the Plans solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries
and for' the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and
defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Plans, in violation of ERISA Section
404(a)(1X(A), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(A);

b. - Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge
their duties with respect to the Plans with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with
such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, in
violation of ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1104{a)(1)(B);

c. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF caused the Plans to engage in
transactions that they knew or should have known constituted direct or indirect transfers to, or
use by or for the benefit of, a party in interest, of any assets of the Plans, in violation of ERISA

Section 406(a)(1)(D), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(a)(1)(D);

12
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d. Defendants Koresko and Bonney dealt with the assets of the Plans in their own
interest and for their own account in violation of ERISA Section 406(b)(1), 29 U.8.C. §
1106(b)(1);

c. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failedlto hold all
assets of the Plans in trust, in violation of ERISA Section 403(a), 29 U.S.C. § 1103(a);

f. -~ As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF
particiﬁated knowingly in, or knowingly undertook to conceal, the acts or omissions of each
other with regard to the death benefits, knowing such acts or omissions were breaches of ERISA,
and are liable for each others® breaches set forth in subparagraphs 22 to 28 above, pursuant to
ERISA Section 405(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(1);

‘g. As a fiduciary, Defendant Penn-Mont failed to comply with Section 404(a)(1) in
the administration of its specific duties which gave rise to its status as a fiduciary, and thus
enabled the other fiduciaries to commit breaches of ERISA with regard to the death benefits set
forth in subparagraphs 22 to 28 above. Therefore, Defendant Penn-Mont is liable as a co-
ﬁducia;'y for the other fiduciaries” breaches pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(2), 29 U.S.C. §
1105(a)(2); and

h. As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF had
knowledge of each others’ breaches of ERISA with regard to the death benefits set forth in
subparagraphs 22 to 28 above, and failed to make reasonable efforts under the circumstances to
remedy each others” fiduciary breaches and are each liable for each others’ fiduciary breaches,

pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(3), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(3).

13
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Unlawful Transfer of Interest Income to Defendants

45. By their actions and conduct described in paragraphs 29 to 32 above with regard
to the ipcoﬁe paid out of the Trust to Defendants:

a. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC, KLF, CTC and PPT failed to
discharge their duties with respect to the Plans solely in the interest of the participants and
beneficiaries and for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and their
beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Plans, in violation of
ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(A), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(A);

b. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC, KLF, CCT and PPT failed to
discharge their duties with respect to the Plans with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under
the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with
such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, in
violation of ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(B);

C. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF caused the Plans to engage in
transactions that they knew or should have known constituted direct or indirect transfers to, or
use by or for the benefit of, a party in interest, of any assets of the Plans, in violation of ERISA
Section 406(a)(1)(D), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(a)(1)(D),

d. Defendant Koresko dealt with the assets of the Plans in his own interest and for
his own account in violation of ERISA Section 406(b)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(b}1);

e. As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC, KLF and CTC
participated knowingly in, or knowingly undertook to conceal, the acts or omissions of each

other with regard to the income paid out of the Trust to Defendants, knowing such acts or

14
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omissions were breaches of ERISA, and are liable for each others’ breaches set forth in
subparagraphs 29 to 32 above pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(1);

f. As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont and CTC failed to comply with Section
404(a)(1) in the administration of their specific duties which gave rise to its status as fiduciaries,
and thus enabled the other fiduciaries to commit breaches of ERISA with regard to the income
paid out of the Trust to Defendants. Therefore, Defendants Penn-Mont and CTC are liable as co-
fiduciaries for the other fiduciaries” breaches set forth in subparagraphs 29 to 32 above pursuant
to ERISA Section 405(a)(2), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(2); and

g. As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC, KLF and CTC had
knowledge of each others’ breaches of ERISA with regard to income paid out of the Trust to
Defendants set forth in subparagraphs 29 to 32 above, and failed to make reasonable efforts
under the circumstances to remedy each others’ fiduciary breaches and are each liable for each
others’ fiduciary breaches, pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(3), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(3); and

h. Defendants CTC and PPT knowingly participated in the violations of ERISA
described in subparagraphs 29 to 32 above. Accordingly, pursuant to ERISA § 502(a)(5), 29
U.S.C.'§ 1105(a)(5), they must restore to the Plans the monies they unlawfully received as a
result of those violations.

Unlawful Transfers of Plan Assets to Defendants

46. By their actions and conduct described in paragraphs 33 to 35 above with regard
to the other transfers out of the Trust to Defendants:

a. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC, KLF and PPT failed to
discharge their duties with respect to the Plans solely in the interest of the participants and

beneficiaries and for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and their
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beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Plans, in violation of
ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(A), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(A);

b. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC, KLF and PPT failed to
discharge their duties with respect to the Plans with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under
the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with
such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, in
violation of ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)}(B);

‘C. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF caused the Plans to engage in
transactions that they knew or should have known constituted direct or indirect transfers to, or
use by or for the benefit of, a party in interest, of any assets of the Plan, in violation of ERISA
Section 406(a)(1)(D)), 29 U.S.C. § 1106(a)(1)(D);

d. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, KAPC and KLF dealt with the assets of the
Plans in their own interest and for their own account in violation of ERISA Section 406(b)(1), 29
U.S.C. § 1106(b)(1);

e. - As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC, and KLF participated
knowingly in, or knowingly undertook to conceal, the acts or omissions of each other with regard
to the other transfers out of the Trust to Defendants, knowing such acts or omissions were
breaches of ERISA, and are liable for each others’ breaches set forth in subparagraphs 33 to 35
above pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(1);

£ As a fiduciary, Defendant Penn-Mont failed to comply with Section 404(a)(1) in
the administration of its specific duties which gave rise to its status as a fiduciary, and thus
enabled the other fiduciaries to commit breaches of ERISA with regard to the other transfers out

of the Trust to Defendants. Therefore, Defendant Penn-Mont is liable as a co-fiduciary for the
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other ﬁ.duciaries’ breaches set forth in subparagraphs 33 to 35 above pursuant to ERISA Section
405(a)(2), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(2); and

g. As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF had knowledge
of each others’ breaches of ERISA with regard to the other transfers oﬁt of the Trust to
Defendants set forth in subparagraphs 33 to 35 above, and failed to make reasonable efforts
under the circumstances to remedy cach others’ fiduciary breaches and are each liable for each
others’ fiduciary breaches, pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(3), 29 U.8.C. § 1105(a)(3); and

h. | Defendants KAPC, KLF and PPT knowingly participated in the violations of
ERISA described in subparagraphs 33 to 35 above. Accordingly, pursuant to ERISA §
502(a)(5), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(2)(5), they must restore to the Plans the monies they unlawfully
received as a result of those violations.

Defendants’ Unlawful Failure to Credit Stock and Dividends

47. By their actions and conduct described in paragraphs 36 to 37 above with regard
to stock and dividends:

a. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge their duties
with respect to the Plans solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries and for the
exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and defraying
reasonable expenses of administering the Plans, in violation of ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(A), 29
U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(A);

b. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge their duties
with respéct to the Plans with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances

then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
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would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, in violation of
ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(2)(1)(B);

c. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to hold all assets of the
Plans in trust, in violation of ERISA Section 403(a), 29 U.S.C. § 1103(a) and;

. Defendants Penn-Mont, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge their duties
in accordance with the documents and instruments governing the Plans, in violation of ERISA
Section 404(2)(1XD), 29 U.S8.C. § 1104(a)}(1)(D).

Defendants’ Unlawful Use of Plan Assets to Pay Lobbying Expenses

48. By their actions and conduct described in paragraphs 38 to 39 above with regard
to the lobbying expenses:

a. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge
their duties with respect to the Plans solely in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries
and for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and
defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Plans, in violation of ERISA Section
404(a)(1)(A), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a)(1)(A);

b. Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF failed to discharge
their duties with respect to the Plans with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with
such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, in
violation of ERISA Section 404(a)(1)(B), 29 U.S.C. § 1104(a}(1)(B);

c. Defendants Penn-Mont and Koresko dealt with the assets of the Plans in their own
interest and for their own account in violation of ERISA Section 406(b)(1), 29 U.S.C. §

1106(b)(1);
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d As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF
participated knowingly in, or knowingly undertook to conceal, the acts or omissions of each
other with regard to the lobbying expenses, knowing such acts or omissions were breaches of
ERISA, and are liable for each others’ breaches set forth in subparagraphs 38 to 39 above
pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(1);

c. As a fiduciary, Defendant Penn-Mont failed to comply with Section 404(a)(1) in
the administration of its specific duties which gave rise to its status as a fiduciary, and thus
enabled the other fiduciaries to commit breaches of ERISA with regard to the lobbying expenses.
Therefore, Defendant Penn-Mont is liable as a co-fiduciary for the other fiduciaries® breaches set
forth in subparagraphs 38 to 39 above pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(2),29 U.S.C. §
1105(a)2); and

f. As fiduciaries, Defendants Penn-Mont, Koresko, Bonney, KAPC and KLF had
knowledge of each others’ breaches of ERISA with regard to the lobbying expenses set forth in
subparagraphs 38 to 39 above, and failed to make reasonable efforts under the circumstances to
remedy each others’ fiduciary breaches and are each liable for each ofhers’ fiduciary breaches,
pursuant to ERISA Section 405(a)(3), 29 U.S.C. § 1105(a)(3).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Secretary prays that this Court enter an Order:

a. Removing all Defendants as fiduciaries, trustees, third party administrators and service
providers for the Plans;

b. :Enjoining all Defendants from receiving, either directly or indirectly, compensation from
any ERISA-covered plan;

c. Enjoining all Defendants from exercising any custody, control, or decision-making
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authority with respect to the assets of any ERISA-covered plan;

d. Enjoining all Defendants from serving as an administrator, fiduciary, officer, trustee,
custodian, counsel, agent, employee or representative in any capacity for any ERISA-covered
plan, or as a consultant or adviser to any employee benefit plan, including but not limited to, any
entity that provides goods or services to such plan;

e. Appointing an independent fiduciary for the Plans;

f. Appointing a Special Master to make an accounting, at Defendants’ expense, of each
Plan’s assets, including contributions received, the insurance polices, stock and dividends,
together with appropriate interest, to determine the full amount of Plan assets improperly
diverted by the Defendants and the full amount of restitution due to each Plan.

g. Requiring all Defendants, their agents, employees, service providers, banks, accountants,
and attorneys to provide the Secretary, the Special Master and successor fiduciaries all of the
books, documents and records relating to the finances and administration of the Plans and the
Plans’ Trusts.

h. Requiring Defendants to transfer the assets of each of the Plans to the newly appointed
fiduciaries who will administer the Plans, in accordance with the requirements of ERISA and the
Plan documents, to the extent the Plan documents are consistent with ERISA, including paying
beneficiaries for all benefits due to them.

1. Requiring Defendants to restore any losses, including lost opportunity costs, caused by
their fiduciary misconduct;

j. Requiring Defendants to disgorge any funds they have obtained in violation of ERISA’ s
fiduciary duties or their knowing participation in fiduciary misconduct by a fiduciary as alleged

in this Complaint;
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k. Permanently enjoining each of the Defendants from engaging in any action in violation of

Title I of ERISA;

L. Awarding plaintiff, Secretary of Labor, the costs of this action; and

m. Awarding such other relief as is equitable and just.

Post Office Address:

Catherine Oliver Murphy
Regional Solicitor

Office of the Solicitor

The Curtis Center, Suite 630 East
170 S. Independence Mall West
Philadelphia, PA 19106-3306
(215) 861-5126
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Carol A. DeDeo
Deputy Solicitor for National Operations

Catherine Oliver Murphy
Regional Solicitor
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Regional Counsel, ERISA™
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Exhibit A

Access Communication Ltd. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Act Management Co. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Amaro Management Corporation Heaith and Welfare Benefit Plan
Ambience Landscape Corporation Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Anthem Medical Management, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Arch Dental Associates, P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Arizona Otolaryngology Center, P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
A-Tech Concrete Co. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Augustine B. Jimenez, ll], P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
B&L Sheet Metal & Roofing, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Barry Diamond, P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Baseline Holdings, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Ben Franklin Management, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Braddbck Construction, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Briarpatch, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Brigham City Arthritis Clinic, P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Brown & Luke Contracting Co. Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
BSP Solutions, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Central Georgia Cardiology, LLC Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Cetylite Industries, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Christopher Lyden, D.C., P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
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Classic Design Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Cleburne Medical Clinic, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Columbia Data Products, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Comfort Engineers, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Commercial Masonry Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Complete Medical Care Service, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Cornerstone Masonry, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

CS| Management Company, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Dan Madison & Co. Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Dansko, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Datalink Electronics, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

David C. Spokane Orthodontic Assoc., P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Décor-Coordinates, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Delaware County Urological Associates, Lid. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Dominic M. Castellano, D.D.S. P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Device Engineering Incorporated Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

E. Rol:;ert Fussell, P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Earth Shelter Developers, A California Corporation, Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Eisler Nurseries, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Ellis LandScape Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Emergence Medicine Resources Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Fairshare, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

First Street Grill Management Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
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Foot & Leg Centers of GA, PC Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Haddon Orthodontics, P.C., Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Hank Bailey Financial Services, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Harry H. Monokian, D.M.D., P. A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Harvey Passes, DDS, P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Hazlet Pharmacy, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Horn Electric Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

ICCO Management Corp. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Innovative Care Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Innovative Design, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

International Travel Consultants, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Jay Steer, CPA Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

JLNC, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

John Sharratt Associates, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Stokes Johnson & Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Joyce & Associates Construction, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Kin W. Lui, M.D. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Kline, Scott, Visco Commercial Real Estate, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
L.A. Downey & Son, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Law O:ffices of Eugene L. Weisbein Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Law Office of Michael W. Lucansky, P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Lawrence Orthopedics Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

LGS Specialty Sales, Ltd. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

LS )
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Lyle J. Micheli, M.D., PC Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

McReg Industries Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

M.J. Hoag Contracting, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Marine Corp. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan .

Mario Magcalas, M.D., P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
MBT Mahagement, inc. Heaith and Welfare Benefit Plan
Metropolitan ENT Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

MIDA Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Mini Precision, Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Nautical Marine, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

New England Finish Systems, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Newell Brothers Construction Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Olouakan Comluct, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Olympic Horticultural Products Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Paul J. Corrado, Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Perry Reding, M.D., P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

P.J. Reddy, M.D., P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Platform Services, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Progressive Door Corp. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Progressive Motion, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Ram Pipe & Supply, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Re-Vita Manufacturing Company Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Rizzo & Associates, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
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Robert G. Ostoyich, D.M.D., PC Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Robert S. Block Technologies Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
S.H. Silver Company, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Schauer & Assbciates, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Scientific Systems, Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Sheffield Distributing Company, lnc_:. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Sheree B. Lipkis, M.D., S.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Sidney Charles Market Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Skulls Unlimited International, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Smeester Bros., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

South Texas Woodmill, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Southern Insurance Consuitants, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
SW Ob-Gyn Assoc., P.A. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Spencer Management, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Steven G. Reitan, DDS., Lid. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Steveﬁ Locnikar, D.O., P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Stockwell Construction Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Superior Bindery, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Taitronics, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

TDF Metal Finishing Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
Technocean Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

The Quantic Group, Ltd. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

The Underwood Group, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan



Case 2:09-cv-00988-WB Document 1 Filed 03/06/09 Page 28 of 28

Tobey.Karg Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Trimm, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

U.E. Systems Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Urgent Medical Care Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Victorié, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

W.S. Associates, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Walter F. Zoller, D.M.D., P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Wang _Electric, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Waterloo Contractors, Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

Whiteside Machinery & Repair Co., Inc. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan
William Y. Akerman, Jr., D.M.D., P.C. Health and Welfare Benefit Plan

The Women's Group for Obstetrics and Gynecology Health and Welfare Benefit Plan



